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O'CONNOR
DAVIES ad

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Town Board
of the Town of Wallkill, New York

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Town of Wallkill, New York (“Town”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the Town of Wallkill Housing Authority (a component unit) and the Town of Wallkill
Industrial Development Agency (a component unit) for the year ended December 31, 2012. Those statements
were audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it related
to the amounts included for such component units, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

O’'CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Suite 301, Harrison, NY 10528 | Tel: 914.381.8900 | Fax: 914.381.8910 | www.odpkf.com

0’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or liability for the actions
or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.



Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town, as of December 31, 2012, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General,
Highway and Special Districts funds for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's
Discussion and Analysis and the Schedule of Funding Progress — Other Post Employment Benefits be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that coltectively
comprise the Town’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, which insofar as it
relates to the component units referred to above, is based on the reports of the other auditors, the information
is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

! W
& Conna , L
O’Connor Davies, LLP

Harrison, New York
June 28, 2013



Town of Wallkill, New York

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2012

Introduction

On behalf of Town Supervisor Daniel Depew and the staff of the Wallkill Finance Office, | am Submitting
this Management’s Discussion and analysis (MD&A) as required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. The MD&A gives the Town's Finance Officer an opportunity to summarize the Town’
financial activity for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012. This MD&A should be read in conjunction
with the basic financial statements that immediately follow this section to enhance understanding of the
Town'’s financial performance.

Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2012
The key information that readers of this report need to draw from it is as follows:

e The Town of Wallkill has net position that totals $21.1 million, excluding the Wallkill Housing
Authority and Wallkill IDA. Of this amount, $21.8 million represents governmental net position and
$(.70) million is business-type net position for the Town’s golf course. Total net position for both
types of activities increased by $.436 million, with governmental activities increasing by $.515
million and business-type activities declining by $.079 million.

e The Town's major governmental funds ended 2012 with total fund balance of $16.1 million,
exclusive of the Capital Projects Fund. However, of this amount, $1.7 million was nonspendable.
An additional $.315 million was restricted, while assigned fund balance was $12.8 million
(primarily because of the special revenue funds), and $ 1.3 million was unassigned fund balance
in the General Fund.

e The Town's business-type entity, the Town of Wallkill golf course had total negative net position
of $.70 million. Unfortunately, the golf course has been running at a deficit in recent years, with a
loss in 2012 of $.079 million.

* The Town'’s total outstanding debt was $ 21.1 million on bonds and notes (tax anticipation notes
and revenue anticipation notes) as of December 31, 2012.

Using This Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements that are shown in detail in the section that
follows this MD&A. The statement of net position and the statement of activities provide information
about the activities of the Town as a whole, and in time, information for a longer-term view of the Town’s
finances. Fund financial statements show how the various operating funds began and ended 2012 and
the level of resources available for future years. Fiduciary funds also are shown; these consist of an
Agency Fund. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in government-wide and fund financial statements.

Additional statements and schedules can be found immediately following the notes to the financial
statements. These include statements for the non-governmental funds and schedules of budgets to
actual comparisons.



Reporting on the Town as a Whole
Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with an overview of the
Town’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business, including assets not previously
included such as infrastructure. The statements that best summarize the Town'’s finances as a whole are
the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. These two statements include all assets
and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. All of the Town'’s revenues and expenses are taken
into account, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the Town'’s net position and changes in them. Increases or decreases in net
position indicate whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating. In both
statements, the activities of the Town are divided into three types:

Governmental activities - Most of the Town’s basic services are shown here including police, highway,
water, sewer, parks, land use, and support agencies. Property taxes, non property tax items, state aid
and charges for services are the primary sources of revenue for these activities.

Business-type activities - the Town'’s golf course is intended to be completely self-sufficient and does not
receive taxes. Golf fees, green fees, cart rental and facility rental are the primary revenue sources.

Component units - The Town of Wallkill Housing Authority and Town of Wallkill IDA are separate legal
entities from the Town, but the Town ultimately is financially accountable for them.

Reporting the Town’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the Town’s various funds. Some funds
are required to be established by State law. The Town’s three types of funds — governmental,
proprietary and fiduciary — use different basis of accounting.

Governmental funds - Most of the basic services provided by the Town are financed and accounted for
through governmental funds. Governmental funds’ financial statements focus on how money flows into
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all
other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide
a detailed short-term view of the Town's general government operations and the basic services it
provides. Governmental fund information is useful in determining the Town’s financial requirements for
subsequent fiscal periods.

Proprietary funds - These funds are used to show activities that operate similar to private business
enterprises. Because these funds charge fees for services provided, they are known as proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of
Net Position and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the Town's enterprise fund ( a component of
proprietary funds) are the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide
statements but provide more detai.



The Town as Trustee
Reporting the Town’s Fiduciary Responsibilities

All of the Town’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate Statement of Assets and Liabilities -
Fiduciary Fund. We exclude these activities from the Town'’s other financial statements because the
Town cannot use these assets to finance operations.

Notes to Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to financial statements are located
following the basic financial statements section of this report.

Other Information

Additional statements and schedules can be found immediately following the notes to financial
statements. These include the required supplementary information for the Town's other post
employment benefit obligations, the combining statements for the non-major governmental funds and
schedules of budget to actual comparisons.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The Town’s combined net position at the end of 2012 was $21.14 million. Of this amount, $21.81 million
were assets of governmental activities and a negative $.668 million were assets of business-type
activities - the Town of Wallkill golf course.

Total assets were $59.6 million at the end of 2012, with capital assets, net of depreciation accounting for
$41.1 million of this amount. This latter amount includes infrastructure of $23.2 million. An additional
$2.1 million is land, which is not depreciated. The values of capital assets are based on historical costs.
The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to residents, and therefore these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the Town’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of
related debt, it should be noted that resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate the debt. Current assets total
$18.5 million and consist primarily of $14.1 million in cash and equivalents and $4.4 million in
receivables.

Total liabilities are $38.5 million with bonds outstanding at $10.4 million and capital leases payable of
$.415 million. Other long-term liabilities of the Town include compensated absences of $1.7 million and
other post employment benefit obligations of $13.4 million. The Town also reported $10.3 million in
short-term notes.



Town of Wallkill, New York
Net Position
December 31, 2012
(In millions of dollars)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Current Assets $ 18.362 $ 14.163 $ 0144 $ 0.238 $ 18506 $ 14.401
Capital Assets, Net 39.617 42 967 1.508 1.618 41,125 44,585
Total Assets 57.979 57.130 1.652 1.856 59.631 58.986
Current Liabilities 10.644 12.521 1.815 2.038 12.459 14.559
Long Term Liabilities 25.524 23.314 0.505 0.407 26.029 23.721
Total Liabilities 36.168 35.835 2.320 2.445 38.488 38.280
Net investment in

Capital Assets 20.910 22.281 1.365 1.475 22.275 23.756
Restricted Assets 10.242 - - - 10.242 -
Unrestricted Assets (9.341) (0.986) (2.033) (2.064) (11.374) (3.050)
Total Net Position $ 21.811 $ 21.295 $ (0.668) $ (0.589) $ 21 143 $ 20.706

When liabilities are subtracted from assets the resulting net position is $ 21.14 million, consisting of
$22.3 million net investment in capital assets, $10.2 million in restricted assets, and a negative $11.4
million in unrestricted assets. The latter includes capital projects for which long-term debt has not been
issued as well as the cumulative deficits of the Town’s golf course. The restricted assets include $ 9.93
million for special revenue funds and $.305 million for parklands. :

Statement of Activities

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town's net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes are reported as soon as the change occurs, regardless of the timing
of the related cash flows. The Town activities are all shown on an accrual basis rather than the modified
approach that is traditional in governmental financial statements.

Total revenues for the Town of Wallkill were $ 28.0 million. Real property taxes made up $11.7 million of
this amount or 41%. Charges for services were $ 8.1 million or 28% made up of building, recreation and
water/sewer charges. Non property tax items (sales tax) were at $4.03 million or 14%. Operating grants
and contribution were $2.04 million or 7%. Unrestricted State aid totaled $0.558 million or 1%.



Changed in Net Position

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2012

Revenue

Program Revenues
Charges for services
Grants & contribution
Capital grants

General Revenues
Real Property Taxes
Other Tax ltems
Non-Property Taxes
Unrestricted Use of
Money & Property
Sale of Property
Unrestricted State aid
Miscellaneous

Sale of Real Property

Total Revenues

Program Expenses

General Government Support

Public Safety

Health

Transportation

Economic Opportunity &
Development

Culture & Recreation

Home & Community Service

interest

Golf Course

Total Expenses

Increase in Net Position
before Transfers

Transfers
Increase in Net Assets

Net Position Beg. Of
Year

Net Position End of Year

(in millions of dollars)

Govermental Business-
Activities Type Activities
2012 2012 Total
$ 6.902 3 1.217 3 8.119
2.040 - 2.040
0.001 - 0.001
11.679 - 11.679
1.369 - 1.369
4.029 - 4.029
0.008 0.001 0.009
0.044 - 0.044
0.558 - 0.558
0.007 - 0.007
0.173 - 0.173
26.810 1.218 28.028
3.062 - 3.062
8.923 - 8.923
0.016 - 0.016
7.339 - 7.339
0.005 - 0.005
1.182 - 1.182
5.267 - 5.267
0.501 - 0.501
1.297 1.297
26.295 1.297 27.592
0.515 (0.079) 0.436
0.515 (0.079) 0.436
21.296 -0.589 20.707
$ 21.811 3 (0.668) $ 21.143




Program expenses totaled $27.6 million, with governmental programs accounting for $26.3 million of that
amount. The cost of operating the golf course was $1.3 million. Public safety expenses, mainly police
expenses, total $8.92 million or 33% of Town spending. Home and community services were $5.3
million, or 20%. Water and sewer service costs account for the majority of the latter amount.
Transportation spending, primarily by the Highway Department, was $7.3 million or 27% of the total.

The resulting net change in total net position in 2012 was a $.436 million increase. Governmental
activities increase by $.515 million, while the assets of the golf course declined by $.080 million.

Financial Analysis of the Town’s Funds

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Fund Balance Reporting

GASB issued Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”, in
February 2009. The requirements of GASB 54 became effective for financial statements for the Town's
fiscal period December 31, 2011. GASB Statement 54 abandoned the reserved and unreserved
classifications of fund balance and replaced them with five new classifications: nonspendable, restricted,
committed, assigned and unassigned. An explanation of these classifications follows below.

Nonspendable - consists of assets that are inherently nonspendable in the current period either because
of their form or because they must maintained intact, including prepaid items, inventories, long-term
portions of loans receivable, financial assets held for resale, and principal of endowments.

Restricted - consists of amounts that are subject to externally enforceable legal purpose restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments; or through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - consists of amounts that are subject to purpose constraint imposed by a formal action of the
government’s highest level of decision-making authority before the end of the fiscal year, and that require
the same level of formal action to remove the constraint.

Assigned - consists of amounts that are subject to a purpose constraint that represents an intended use
established by the government’s highest level of decision-making authority, or by their designated body
or official. The purpose of the assignment must be narrower than the purpose of the General Fund, and
in funds other than the General Fund, assigned fund balance represents the residual amount of fund
balance.

Unassigned - represents the residual classification for the government's General Fund, and could report
a surplus or deficit. In funds other the General Fund, the unassigned classification should be used only
to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been
restricted had been restricted, committed, or assigned.

These changes were made to reflect spending constraints on resources, rather than the availability for
appropriations and to bring greater clarity and consistency to fund balance reporting. This
pronouncement shouid resuit in an improvement in the usefulness of fund balance information.



Governmental Fund Highlights

The New York State Comptroller's Office requires the local governments use fund accounting, which is
consistent with Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and that only the minimum number of funds
required by law and operating requirements should maintained.

The major operating funds of the Town of Wallkill are the General Fund, Highway Fund, the Special
Districts Fund (which includes the Consolidated Sewer Fund and the Consolidated Water Fund).

The tables on the following pages show the Town of Wallkill's governmental funds including revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances.

Total revenues for selected governmental funds were $26.62 million. Expenditures were $22.2 million, or
$4.42 million, less than revenues. There were no serial bonds issued in 2012. There was a sale of real
property of $0.173 million, leaving a $4.57 million increase in fund balances.

Of the total $15.86 million in fund balance, $1.68 million is nonspendable, $ 0.010 million is restricted,
and there are no committed funds. The assigned and unassigned portions of fund balance are $12.84
million and $1.33 million, respectively.



Selected Governmental Operating Funds in 2012
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
(in millions of dollars)

Con. Con.
General Highway Sewer Water Total
Revenues
Property Taxes & $ 10.883 $ 4714 $ 3.390 $ 2838 $ 21.825
Unit charges
Other Revenue 3.114 0.873 0.023 0.106 4,116
Total Revenues 13.997 5.587 3.413 2.944 25.941
Expenditures 12.287 4,926 2.223 2.225 21.661
Revenue Net of
Expenditures 1.71 0.661 1.19 0.719 428
Sale of Real Property 0.173 - - - 0.173
Transfer in 0.088 - - - 0.088
Transfer out - - 0.05 0.065 0.115
Fund Balance - Beginning 1.971 0.661 1.14 0.654 4.426
Fund Balance - Ending 1.078 1.237 2.923 5.082 10.32

Ending Fund Balances $ 3.049 $ 1.898 $ 4.063 $ 5736 $ 14.746

Fund Balance By Type

Nonspenable $ 1.751 $ - $ - $ - $ 1.751

Restricted 0.011 - - - 0.011
Committed

Assigned 0.024 1.898 4.063 5.736 11.721
Unassigned 1.263 - - - 1.263
Total Fund Balance $ 3.049 $ 1.898 $ 4.063 $ 5736 $ 14.746
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General Fund

The Town of Wallkil's General Fund consists of revenues and expenditures for Town-wide services
including parks and recreation, general government support and public safety. Revenues consist of
property taxes, mortgage tax revenue (classified as State aid ), fees from building inspector and park
activities, fines and inter-fund revenues for other fund’s share of general government support.

Total General Fund revenues were $ 14 million in 2012 and expenditures totaled $ 12.29 million.

The Town’'s General Fund ended 2012 with a net change in Fund Balance of $ 1.97 million with an
ending Fund Balance of $ 3.05 million. Revenues were $ 908,448 more than the final budget with non
property tax items and licenses/permit accounting for the major part of the overage. Expenditures were
$1,104,846 below the final budget with most General Fund departments below original budget.

Fund balance increased from beginning level of $ 1.08 million to an ending level of $ 3.05 million. Fund
balancing of $ 1.8 million is nonspendable with advance to the golf course accounting for this. The
ending unassigned fund balance is $ 1.26 million.

Highway Fund

The Highway Fund provides Town-wide and Part —town Highway services as set by New York State
Highway law. Town-wide services consists of snow removal, brush and weed control, highway
equipment and machinery costs. Part —town services include road maintenance with road re-surfacing as
a major component.

Property taxes accounted for 71% of Highway Fund.revenues in 2012. Other revenues are mainly
intergovernmental charges and state aid.

The Highway department received .171 million in federal aid for Hurricane Sandy FEMA claim.

The Highway budget had some decreases in 2012 for snow removal of $.296 million and other costs
savings in road maintenance and weed control.

Consolidated Sewer Fund

The Town's sewer system is composed of seventy miles of sewer pipe , thirteen pumping stations, and a
treatment plant that has a capacity of 4 million gallons of sewage per day.

Usage charges and Special Assessment billing account for 99 % of revenue. The usage rate for 2012
was at $ 2.75/thousand gallons; rate to be raise in 2013.

Fund balance increased from a beginning level of $ 2.9 million to an ending level of $ 4.1 million of which
all is assigned. This increase was due to the cost cutting messages the Town has been following in
running this fund. Expenditures decreased by $.310 million in 2012.

Consolidated Water Fund

The Town'’s water system is composed of eighty miles of pipe and ten water pumping stations.

Usage charges and Special Assessment billing account for 97% of revenue. The usage rate for 2012
was at $2.25/thousand galilons water used, this rate is schedule to be raised in 2013.

The Water department received $ .065 in Federal aid for Hurricane Sandy FEMA claim.
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Fund balance increased from a beginning level of $ 5.08 million to an ending level of $ 5.74 million of
which all is assigned. Expenditures were down $ .421 million which help to increase the Fund balance.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

The Town of Wallkill's capital assets had values, net of accumulated depreciation of $41.125 million at
the end of 2012.

The following table shows the components of the capital assets for governmental and business-type
activities.

Capital Assets
December 31, 2012
(In millions of dollars, net of accumulated depreciation)

Governmental Business-
Activities Type Total
Land -3 1585 % 0523 § 2.108
Land Improvements 3.390 - 3.390
Buildings & Improvements 8.148 0.744 8.892
Golf Course Facility - 0.172 0.172
Machinery & Equipment 1.720 0.069 1.789
Infrastructure 23.181 - 23.181
Construction-In-Progress 1.5693 - 1.593
Total Capital Assets $ 39617 $ 165608 §$ 41125

Additional information on the town’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 in the notes to the financial
Statements.

Long-Term and Short-Term Debt

The Town of Wallkill's long-term debt (general obligation bonds) at the end of 2012 was $10.40 million of
which all was for governmental activities. The town has bond anticipation notes (BANs) and a Tax
Anticipation Note (TAN) outstanding of $10.3 million of the end of 2012.

Total outstanding debt declined from $ 22.39 million in 2011 to $ 20.70 million due to principal payments.

The town's underlying credit rating by Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC is “A”.

12



Outstanding Debt
31-Dec-12
(in millions of dollars)

Governmental Business Total
General Obligation Bonds $ 10.400 $ - 8 10.400
Bond Anticipation Notes 8.190 - 8.190
Energy Performance Contract 1.400 - 1.400
Total Outstanding Debt $ 19.990 $ - 9 19.990

General Information

The Town of Wallkill, classified as a First Class Town, encompasses an area of 64 square miles within
the western part of the County of Orange, New York. There are no incorporated villages within the town,
however, the Town includes the unincorporated communities of Circleville, Howells, Washington Heights
and Scotchtown. In addition, the Town completely encircles the City of Middletown. Wallkill is a suburban
community and primarily residential in nature. The Town also enjoys substantial retail and commercial
activity and some industry. Residents of the Town are employed throughout the area, which has a retail
and service oriented economy.

Next Year’'s Budgets and Tax Rate
The 2013 budget was 'the second year in which the town needed to comply with the property tax cap that
was approved by the New York State Legislature in 2011. The Town has stay under or right at the cap

by undertaking tight budget controls that keeps expenses down and properly record revenues.

For 2014, the Town Board has indicated that it will again stay within the tax cap.

Contacting the Town’s Financial Management

This report is intended to provide a broad overview of the Town of Wallkill's finances to its citizens and
other stakeholders. If you desire additional information or have suggestions for improving this report,
please contact:

Wallkill Supervisor Office
Town of Wallkill
99 Tower Dr. Build A
Middletown, NY 10941

13



Town of Wallkill, New York

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable
State and Federal aid
Due from other governments
Water and sewer rents
Capital assets
Not being depreciated
Being depreciated, net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other governments
Due to retirement systems
Tax anticipation notes payable
Bond anticipation notes payable
Internal balances
Accrued interest payable
Non-current liabilities

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Liability and casualty
Special Districts
Water
Sewer
Street lighting
Road improvements
Parklands
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ 13,960,547 $ 129,783 % 14,090,330
448 552 14,108 462,660
936,043 - 936,043
1,419,712 - 1,419,712
1,597,002 - 1,697,002
3,177,632 522,634 3,700,266
36,439,491 985,287 37,424,778
57,978,979 1,651,812 59,630,791
584,601 16,943 601,544
211,517 6,179 217,696
1,121,873 40,761 1,162,634
1,400,000 - 1,400,000
8,900,000 - 8,900,000
(1,750,879) 1,750,879 -
176,596 - 176,596
1,307,220 36,490 1,343,710
24,217,267 468,900 24,686,167
36,168,195 2,320,152 38,488,347
20,910,392 1,365,149 22,275,541
10,549 - 10,549
5,483,069 - 5,483,069
3,416,606 - 3,416,606
313,013 - 313,013
713,878 - 713,878
304,687 - 304,687
(9,341, 410) (2,033,489 {11,374,899)

$ 21,810,784 $ (668,340) $ 21,142 444

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Component

Units

Town of Wallkill

Town of Wallkill Industrial
Housing Development

Authority Agency
$ 6,130,250 $ 198,889
6,130,250 198,889
- 201,223
- 201,223
6,130,250 (2,334)
$ 6,130,250 $ (2,334)

15



Town of Wallkill, New York

Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2012

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government
Governmental activities
General government support $ 3,062,556 $ 51,838 $ 283,555
Public safety 8,922,564 1,325,742 -
Health 15,506 40,520 -
Transportation 7,339,012 35,617 1,616,195
Economic opportunity and
development 4711 - -
Culture and recreation 1,182,438 506,011 2,835
Home and community
services 5,267,490 4,942 807 137,408
Interest 501,035 - -
Total Governmental
Activities 26,295,312 6,902,535 2,039,993

Business-type activities )
Golf Course 1,297,188 1,217,344 -

Total .
$ 27,592,500 $ 8,119,879 § 2,039,993

Component units

Town of Wallkill Housing Authority  $ 2610 $ - 98 -
Town of Wallkill Industrial
Development Agency 2,850 - -
Total Component Units $ 5460 $ - 3 -

General revenues
Real property taxes
Other tax items
Payments in lieu of taxes
interest and penalties on real property taxes
Franchise fees
Non-property taxes
Non-property tax distribution from County
Unrestricted use of money and property
Sale of property and compensation for loss
Unrestricted State aid
Miscellaneous
Sale of real property

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning, as restated
Net Position - End of Year

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Component Units

Town of
Town of Wallkilf
Wallkill Industrial
Governmental Business-type Housing Development
Activities Activities Total Authority Authority
(2,727,163) $ - % (2,727163) 3 - $ -
(7,596,822) - (7,596,822) - -
25,014 - 25,014 - -
(5,687,200) - (5,687,200) - -
(4,711) - (4,711) - .
(673,592) - (673,592) - -
(187,275) - (187,275) - -
(501,035) - (501,035) - -
(17,352,784) - (17,352,784) - -
- (79.844) (79,844) - -
(17,352,784) (79,844) (17,432,628) - -
- - - (2,610) -
- - - - (2,850)
- - - (2,610) (2,850)
11,678,122 - 11,678,122 - -
1,036,208 - 1,036,208 - -
52,465 - 52,465 - -
280,073 - 280,073 - -
4,028,648 - 4,028,648 - -
9,160 340 9,500 198,632 917
44,049 - 44,049 - -
558,176 - 558,176 - -
7,720 - 7,720 - -
173,379 - 173,379 - -
17,868,000 340 17,868,340 198,632 917
515,216 (79,504) 435,712 196,022 (1,933)
21,295,568 (588,836) 20,706,732 5,934,228 (401)
21,810,784 3 (668,340) $ 21,142,444 $ 6,130,250 $ (2,334)
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Town of Wallkill, New York

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2012

Special
General Highway Districts
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents $ 1452326 $ 1985308 $ 9,490,464
Receivables
Accounts 364,718 66,284 17,550
State and Federal aid 936,043 - -
Due from other governments 1,419,712 - -
Water and sewer rents - - 1,697,002
Due from other funds 73,008 291,660 99,216
Advances to other funds 1,677,871 - -
4.471,352 357,944 1,713,768
Total Assets 3 5923678 $§ 2343252 $ 11,204,232
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 320,543 % 169,089 % 94,969
Accrued liabilities 122,992 69,761 18,764
Due to retirement systems 789,804 206,185 125,884
Due to other funds 242,097 - 48,787
Tax anticipation notes payable 1,400,000 ' - -
Bond anticipation notes payable - - -
Total Liabilities 2,875,436 445 035 288,404
Fund balances (deficits)
Nonspendable 1,677,871 - -
Restricted 10,549 - -
Assigned 24,401 1,898,217 10,915,828
Unassigned 1,335,421 - -
Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 3,048,242 1,898,217 10,915,828

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances (Deficits) $ 5,923,678 $ 2343252 $ 11,204,232

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Capital
Projects

Other
Governmental

Total
Governmental
Funds

720,509 %

311,940

$ 13,960,547

448,552
936,043
1,419,712
1,597,002
463,884
1,677,871

6,543,064

720,509 $

311,940

$ 20,503,611

- 3

49,563

8,900,000

50,429

$ 584,601
211,517
1,121,873
390,876
1,400,000
8,900,000

8,949,563

50,429

12,608,867

(8,229,054)

304,687

(43,176)

1,677,871

315,236

12,838,446
(6,936,809)

(8,229,054)

261,511

7,894,744

720,509 $

311,940

$ 20,503,611
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Town of Wallkill, New York

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2012

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are Different Because:

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 7,894,744

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 39,617,123

Long-term liabilities that are not due and payable in the current
period are not reported in the funds.

Accrued interest payable (176,596)
Bonds payable (10,400,000)
Capital leases payable (272,677)
Compensated absences (1,619,658)
Landfill closure costs (150,140)
Other post employment benefit obligations payable (13,082,012)

(25,701,083)

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 21,810,784

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Wallkill, New York

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2012

Special
General Highway Districts
REVENUES
Real property taxes $ 5,036,775 $ 3,957,252 $ 2,684,095
Other tax items 892,999 445,206 30,541
Non-property taxes 4,028,648 - -
Departmental income 640,967 - 4,192,272
Intergovernmental charges 283,555 311,810 -
Use of money and property 46,868 10,208 30,222
Sale of property and compensation
for loss 44,049 97,831 -
Interfund revenues - 245,808 -
Licenses and permits 697,948 - -
Fines and forfeitures 1,082,676 - -
State aid 811,494 344,624 22,103
Federal aid 422,808 170,686 64,767
Miscellaneous 7,720 3,840 15,021
Total Revenues ' 13,996,507 - 5,687,265 7,039,021
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government support 2,340,144 - -
Public safety 4,161,640 - -
Health 15,506 - -
Transportation 792,430 3,472,596 46,538
Economic opportunity and development 4,711 - -
Culture and recreation 743,641 - -
Home and community services 124,095 - 3,661,314
Employee benefits 3,450,364 1,277,699 570,118
Debt service
Principal 350,000 161,833 625,000
Interest 304,756 13,478 183,696
Capital outlay - - -
Total Expenditures 12,287,287 4,925,606 4,986,666
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 1,709,220 661,659 2,052,355
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of real property 173,379 - -
Transfers in 88,096 - -
Transfers out - - (115,000)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 261,475 - (115,000)
Net Change in Fund Balances 1,970,695 661,659 1,937,355
Fund Balances (Deficits) - Beginning of Year, as restated 1,077,547 1,236,558 8,978,473
Fund Balances (Deficits) - End of Year $ 3,048,242 $ 1,898,217 $ 10,915,828

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Capital
Projects

Other
Governmental

Total
Governmental
Funds

$ -

250,000

726

11,678,122
1,368,746
4,028,648
5,083,239

595,365
88,988

141,880
245,808
697,948
1,082,676
1,178,221
666,725
26,591

26,882,957

15,631

2,340,144
4,161,640
15,506
4,311,564
4,711
743,641
3,695,358
5,298,181

1,136,833
501,930
15,631

15,631

9,950

22,225,140

(14,667)

249,250

4,657,817

115,000

(88,096_)

173,379
203,096
(203,096)

115,000

(88,096)

173,379

100,333

(8,329,387)

161,154

100,357

4,831,196

3,063,548

$

(8,229,054)

$ 261,511

7,894,744
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Town of Wallkill, New York

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are Different Because:

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 4,831,196

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation expense
exceeded capital outlays in the current period. This amount may be less than total capital
outlay since capital outlay includes amounts that are under the capitalization threshold.

Capital outlay expenditures 27,030
Depreciation expense (3,376,731)
(3,349,701)

Debt provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing
debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment
of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Principal paid on bonds 975,000
Principal paid on capital leases 161,833
1,136,833

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Accrued interest 895
Compensated absences (221,954)

Landfill closure costs 5,860

Other post employment benefit obligations (1,887,913)
(2,103,112)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 515,216

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Wallkill, New York

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

General, Highway and Special Districts Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2012

REVENUES

Real property taxes

Other tax items
Non-property taxes
Departmental income
Intergovernmental charges
Use of money and property
Sale of property and compensation for loss
Interfund revenues
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures

State aid

Federal aid

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic opportunity and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Employee benefits
Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of real property

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year, as restated

Fund Balances - End of Year

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

General Fund

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 5036775 $ 5036775 $ 5036775 $ -
815,000 815,000 892,999 77,999
3,617,320 3,617,320 4,028,648 411,328
524,500 524,500 640,967 116,467
408,000 408,000 283,655 (124,445)
38,220 38,220 46,868 8,648
22,200 22,200 44,049 21,849
399,500 399,500 697,948 298,448
879,000 879,000 1,082,676 203,676
1,145,044 1,145,044 811,494 (333,550)
200,000 200,000 422,808 222,808
2,500 2,500 7,720 5,220
13,088,059 13,088,059 13,996,507 908,448
2,814,547 2,811,858 2,340,144 471,714
4,085,111 4,249,193 4,161,640 87,553
8,013 15,507 15,506 1
968,904 847,614 792,430 55,184
12,300 12,300 4,711 7,689
1,091,484 1,071,535 743,641 327,894
125,560 136,435 124,095 12,340
3,631,177 3,692,229 3,450,364 141,865
350,000 350,000 350,000 -
305,462 305,462 304,756 706
13,392,558 13,392,133 12,287,287 1,104,846
(304,499) (304,074) 1,709,220 2,013,294
- - 173,379 173,379
300,000 300,000 88,096 (211,904)
300,000 300,000 261,475 (38,525)
(4,499) (4,074) 1,970,695 1,974,769
4,499 4,074 1,077,547 1,073,473
$ - 3% - $ 3048242 3 3,048,242
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Highway Fund

Special Districts Fund

Variance with

Variance with

Final Budget Final Budget
Original Final Positive Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
3,957,252 $§ 3,957,252 3,957,252 % - 2,684,095 2684095 $ 2684095 § -
450,000 450,000 445,206 (4,794) 30,541 30,541 30,541 -
- - - - 3,863,146 3,863,146 4,192,272 329,126
229,000 229,000 311,810 82,810 - - - -
10,000 10,000 10,208 208 30,200 30,200 30,222 22
- - 97,831 97,831 - - - -
175,000 175,000 245,808 70,808 - - - -
22,250 22,250 - (22,250) - - - -
270,000 270,000 344,624 74,624 - - 22,103 22,103
- - 170,686 170,686 - - 64,767 64,767
1,500 1,500 3,840 2,340 - - 15,021 15,021
5,115,002 5,115,002 5,587,265 472,263 6,607,982 6,607,982 7,039,021 431,039
27,939 27,939 - 27,939 13,385 13,385 - 13,385
3,638,670 3,659,469 3,472,596 186,873 136,875 136,875 46,5_38 90,337
- - - - 4,933,501 4,871,670 3,561,314 1,310,356
1,311,521 1,322,970 1,277,699 45,271 586,292 648,048 570,118 77,930
200,000 182,862 161,833 21,029 625,000 625,000 625,000 -
14,762 14,762 13,478 1,284 207,410 202,410 183,696 18,714
5,192,892 5,208,002 4,925,606 282,396 6,502,463 6,497,388 4,986,666 1,510,722
(77,890) (93,000) 661,659 754,659 105,519 110,594 2,052,355 1,941,761
- - - - (310,000) (315,000) (115,000) 200,000
- - - - (310,000) (315,000) (115,000) 200,000
(77,890) (93,000) 661,659 754,659 (204,481) (204,406) 1,937,355 2,141,761
77,890 93,000 1,236,558 1,143,558 204,481 204,406 8,978,473 8,774,067
- 3 - 1,898,217 § 1,898,217 - - § 10915828 $ 10,915,828




Town of Wallkill, New York

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund
December 31, 2012

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable

Total Current Assets

Capital assets
Not being depreciated
Being depreciated, net

Total Capital Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to retirement systems
Due to other funds
Advances from other funds

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Golf Fund

$

129,783
14,108

143,891

522,634
985,287

1,507,921

1,651,812

16,943
6,179
40,761
73,008
1,677,871

1,814,762

36,490
468,900

505,390

2,320,152

1,365,149
(2,033,489)

$

(668,340)




Town of Wallkill, New York

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Golf Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 1,217,344
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services : 446,613
Contractual and other 416,127
Employee benefits 314,746
Depreciation 110,101
Total Operating Expenses 1,287,587
Loss from Operations (70,243)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income 340
Interest expense (9,601)
Total Non-Operating Expenses ' (9,261)
Change in Net Position ' (79,504)
Net Position - Beginning of year, as restated (588,836)
Net Position - End of Year $ (668,340)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Wallkill, New York

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2012

Golf Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 1,223,210
Cash payments for goods and services (522,883)
Cash payments to employees (402,805)
Cash payments for employee benefits (251,936)
Net Cash from Operating Activities 45,586
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances from other funds (87,108)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal paid on installment purchase debt (37,776)
Interest paid on indebtedness (9,601)
Net Cash from Capital and Related Financing Activities (47,377)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income 340
Net Change in Cash (88,559)
Cash - Beginning of Year i 218,342
Cash - End of Year ' . $ 129,783
RECONCILIATION OF LOSS FROM OPERATIONS TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from operations $ (70,243)
Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations to
net cash from operating activities
Depreciation 110,101
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable 5,866
Accounts payable 6,136
Accrued liabilities 1,875
Due to retirement systems 6,357
Due to other funds (112,892)
Compensated absences 41,933
Other post employment benefit obligations payable 56,453
Net Cash from Operating Activities $ 45,586

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Wallkill, New York

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2012

ASSETS
Cash
Demand deposits

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Employee payroll deductions
Deposits

Total Liabilities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Agency

2,132,968

17,530
12,727
2,102,711

2,132,968
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Town of Wallkill, New York

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Town of Wallkill, New York (“Town") was established in 1772 and operates in accordance with Town
Law and the various other applicable laws of the State of New York. The Town Board is the legislative
body responsible for overall operation. The Town Supervisor serves as both the chief executive and chief
financial officer. The Town provides the following services to its residents: public safety, health,
transportation, economic opportunity and development, culture and recreation, home and community
services and general and administrative support.

The accounting policies of the Town conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to
governmental units and the Uniform System of Accounts as prescribed by the State of New York. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (‘“GASB") is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of the
Town's more significant accounting policies:

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity consists of a) the primary government, which is the Town, b)
organizations for which the Town is financially accountable and c) other organizations for which the
nature and significance of their relationship with the Town are such that exclusion would cause the
reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete as set forth by GASB.

In evaluating how to define the Town, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered
all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the Town’s
reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth by GASB, including legal standing, fiscal
dependency and financial accountability. Based upon the application of these criteria, the following
component units are included in the Town’s reporting entity because of their operational or financial
relationship with the Town.

The Wallkill Housing Authority (“Housing Authority”) was organized in 1966 as a municipal housing
authority created and established for the Town under the Public Housing Law of the State of New
York for the purpose of providing decent, safe and sanitary housing for persons of low income and
other related purposes. Since the Housing Authority does not provide services entirely or almost
entirely to the Town, the financial statements of the Housing Authority have been reflected as a
discretely presented component unit. Complete financial statements of the component unit can be
obtained from the Wallkill Housing Authority, 99 Tower Drive, Middletown, New York 10941.

The Wallkill Industrial Development Agency ("Agency”) is a public benefit corporation created by
State legislation to promote the economic welfare, recreation opportunities and prosperity of the
City's inhabitants. Members of the Agency are appointed by the Town Board. Agency members
have complete responsibility for management of the Agency and accountability for fiscal matters.
The Town is not liable for Agency bonds or notes. The governing board of the Agency serves at the
pleasure of the Town Board and, therefore, the primary government is considered to be able to
impose its will on the Agency. Since the Agency does not provide services entirely or almost
entirely to the Town, the financial statements of the Agency have been reflected as a discretely
presented component unit. Complete financial statements may be obtained from the Wallkill
Industrial Development Agency, 99 Tower Drive, Middletown, NY 10941.

30



Town of Wallkill, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2012

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

B.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government as a whole and
its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements, except for interfund services provided and used. Governmental activities, which are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the Town and its component units
at the end of its fiscal year. The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which direct
expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are
those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1)
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods or services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment, (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment and (3) interest
earned on grants that is required to be used to support a particular program. Taxes and other items
not identified as program revenues are reported as general revenues. The Town does not allocate
indirect expenses to functions in the Statement of Activities.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operation. The principal operating revenues of the Enterprise
Fund is charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for the Enterprise Fund include the
cost of services, administrative expenses, depreciation costs and benefit costs. All revenues and
expenses not meeting the definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the Town are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts which comprise its
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund balances/net
position, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Fund accounting segregates funds according to
their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance
related legal and contractual provisions. The Town maintains the minimum number of funds
consistent with legal and managerial requirements. The focus of governmental fund financial
statements is on major funds as that term is defined in professional pronouncements. Each major
fund is to be presented in a separate column, with non-major funds, if any, aggregated and
presented in a single column. Fiduciary funds are reported by type. Since the governmental fund
statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than the
government-wide statements’ governmental activities column, a reconciliation is presented on the
page following, which briefly explains the adjustments necessary to transform the fund based
financial statements into the governmental activities column of the government-wide presentation.
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Town of Wallkill, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

December 31, 2012

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Town’s resources are reflected in the fund financial statements in three broad fund categories,
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as follows:

Fund Categories

a.

Governmental Funds - Governmental Funds are those through which most general
government functions are financed. The acquisition, use and balances of
expendable financial resources and the related liabilities are accounted for through
governmental funds. The following are the Town's major governmental funds.

General Fund - The General Fund constitutes the primary fund of the Town and is
used to account for and report all financial resources not accounted for and reported
in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for and report
the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted, committed or assigned
to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.
The major special revenue funds of the Town are as follows:

Highway Fund - The Highway Fund is used to account for road and bridge
maintenance and improvements as defined in the Highway Law of the State
of New York. The major revenues of this fund are real property taxes and
state aid. :

Special Districts Fund - The Special Districts Fund is provided to account for
the operation and maintenance of the Town’s water, sewer, lighting and road
improvement districts. The major revenues of this fund are real property
taxes and departmental income.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for and report
financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned for capital outlay,
including the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other capital
assets, other than those financed by proprietary funds.
The Town also reports the following non-major governmental funds:
Special Revenue Funds:
Community Development Fund - The Community Development Fund is used
to account for projects and subsidies financed by entitlements from the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development.

Special Purpose Fund - The Special Purpose Fund is used to account for
assets held by the Town in accordance with the terms of a trust agreement.

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds include enterprise funds. Enterprise funds are

used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private enterprises or where the governing body has decided that periodic
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or net income is
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Town of Wallkill, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2012

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

necessary for management accountability. Enterprise funds are used to account for
those operations that provide services to the public. The operations of the Golf
Course are recorded as a major enterprise fund. The Town applies all applicable
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) guidance issued after November
30, 1989 in accounting and reporting for its enterprise operations.

C. Fiduciary Funds (Not Included in Government-Wide Financial Statements) - The
Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Town in an agency
capacity on behalf of others. The Agency Fund is also used to account for
employee payroll tax withholdings or deposits that are payable to other jurisdictions
or individuals.

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement
focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured
such as current financial resources (current assets less current liabilities) or economic resources
(all assets and liabilities). The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for
recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The Agency Fund
has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. Property taxes are considered to be available if collected within sixty days of the
fiscal year end. A ninety day availability period is used for revenue recognition for all other
governmental fund revenues. Property taxes associated with the current fiscal period as well as
charges for services and intergovernmental revenues are considered to be susceptible to accrual
and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Fees and other similar
revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in
cash. If expenditures are the prime factor for determining eligibility, revenues from Federal and
State grants are accrued when the expenditure is made. Expenditures generally are recorded when
a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences, landfill closure and other post employment benefit
obligations payable are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under
capital leases are reported as other financing sources.
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Component Units

Component units are presented on the basis of accounting that most accurately reflects their
activities. The Housing Authority and Industrial Development Agency are accounted for on the
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. The component unit applies
all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Boards guidance issued after November 30, 1989 in
accounting and reporting for its operations.

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Fund
Balances

Deposits and Risk Disclosure

Cash and Equivalents - Cash and equivalents consist of funds deposited in demand
deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit with original maturities of
less than three months.

The Town's investment policies are governed by State statutes. The Town has adopted its
own written investment policy which provides for the deposit of funds in FDIC insured
“ commercial banks or trust companies located within the State. The Town is authorized to
use demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit.
Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Agencies,
repurchase agreements and obligations of New York State or its political subdivisions.

Collateral is required for demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of
deposit at 100% of all deposits not covered by Federal deposit insurance. The Town has
entered into custodial agreements with the various banks which hold their deposits. These
agreements authorize the obligations that may be pledged as collateral. Such obligations
include, among other instruments, obligations of the United States and its agencies and
obligations of the State and its municipal and school district subdivisions.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Town'’s deposits may
not be returned to it. GASB Statement No. 40 directs that deposits be disclosed as exposed
to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are
either uncollateralized, collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution or
collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department but
not in the Town’s name. The Town's aggregate bank balances that were not covered by
depository insurance were not exposed to custodial credit risk at December 31, 2012.

The Town was invested only in the above mentioned obligations and, accordingly, was not
exposed to any interest rate risk or credit risk.

Taxes Receivable - Real property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on real property and are
levied on January 1st. The Town collects county, town, highway and special district taxes which
are due January 1st and payable without penalty until January 31st. The Town retains the total
amount of town, highway and special district and taxes from the total collection and returns the
balance plus the uncollected items to the County, which assumes collection responsibility.
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Other Receivables - Other receivables include amounts due from other governments and
individuals for services provided by the Town. Receivables are recorded and revenues recognized
as earned or as specific program expenditures/expenses are incurred. Allowances are recorded
when appropriate.

Due From/To Other Funds - During the course of its operations, the Town has numerous
transactions between funds to finance operations, provide services and construct assets. To the
extent that certain transactions between funds had not been paid or received as of December 31,
2012, balances of interfund amounts receivable or payable have been recorded in the fund financial
statements. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental and business-type
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as internal balances.

Advances To/From Other Funds - Advances to/from other funds represent loans to other funds,
which are not expected to be repaid within the subsequent annual operating cycle. The advances
are offset by nonspendable fund balance in the fund financial statements which indicates that the
funds are not "available" for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

Inventories - There are no inventory values presented in the balance sheets of the respective
funds of the Town. Purchases of inventoriable items at various locations are recorded as
expenditures at the time of purchase and year-end balances at these locations are not material.

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets
(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or
business type activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are
defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market
value at the date of donation.

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by
governmental activities), the Town chose to include all such items regardless of their acquisition
date or amount. The Town was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these
assets through backtrending (i.e., estimating the current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be
capitalized by using an appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or
estimated acquisition year). '

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The
cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives is not capitalized.

Land and construction-in-progress are not depreciated. Property, plant and equipment of the
primary government, as well as the component unit, are depreciated using the straight line method
over the following estimated useful lives.

Life
Ciass in Years
Buildings and improvements 40
Improvements other than buildings 20
Infrastructure 15-50
Machinery and equipment 5
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The costs associated with the acquisition or construction of capital assets are shown as capital
outlay expenditures on the governmental fund financial statements. Capital assets are not shown
on the governmental fund balance sheet.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - In addition to assets, the statement of financial
position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period
and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow
of resources (revenue) until that time.

As of December 31, 2012, no amounts were.required to be reported as deferred outflows/inflows of
resources.

Long-Term Liabilities - In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term liabilities are reported as liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life
of the bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are amortized over the term of the related debt. ‘ '

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as Capital Projects or
Debt Service funds expenditures.

Compensated Absences - The various collective bargaining agreements provide for the payment
of accumulated vacation and sick leave upon separation from service. The liability for such
accumulated leave is reflected in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements as
current and long-term liabilities. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds
only if the liability has matured through employee resignation or retirement. The liability for
compensated absences includes salary related payments, where applicable.

Net Position - Net position represent the difference between assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is reported as restricted
when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by
the Town or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of
other governments. Net position on the Statement of Net Position includes, net investment in
capital assets, restricted for liability and casualty, special districts and parklands. The balance is
classified as unrestricted.

Fund Balances - Generally, fund balance represents the difference between current assets and

current liabilities. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund classifications
that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Town is bound to honor
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constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Under this
standard the fund balance classifications are as follows:

Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either not in spendable form (inventories, prepaid amounts, long-term receivables,
advances) or they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact (the corpus
of a permanent fund).

Restricted fund balance is to be reported when constraints placed on the use of the
resources are imposed by grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments
or imposed by law through enabling legislation. Enabling legislation includes a legally
enforceable requirement that these resources be used only for the specific purposes as
provided in the legislation. This fund balance classification will be used to report funds
that are restricted for debt service obligations and for other items contained in General
Municipal Law of the State of New York.

Committed fund balance will be reported for amounts that can only be used for specific
purposes pursuant to formal action of the entity’s highest level of decision making
authority. The Town Board is the highest level of decision making authority for the Town
that can, by the adoption of a resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund
balance. Once adopted, these funds may only be used for the purpose specified unless
the Town Board removes or changes the purpose by taking the same action that was
used to establish the commitment. This classification includes certain amounts
established and approved by the Town Board.

Assigned fund balance, in the General Fund, will represent amounts constrained either by
the Town Board for amounts assigned for balancing the subsequent year's budget or the
Town Supervisor for amounts assigned for encumbrances. An assignment cannot result
in a deficit in the unassigned fund balance in the General Fund. Assigned fund balance in
all other governmental funds represents any positive remaining amount after classifying
nonspendable, restricted or committed fund balance amounts.

Unassigned fund balance, in the General Fund, represents amounts not classified as
nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned. The General Fund is the only fund that
would report a positive amount in unassigned fund balance. For all governmental funds
other than the General Fund, unassigned fund balance would necessarily be negative,
since the fund's liabilites and deferred inflows of resources, together with amounts
already classified as nonspendable, restricted and committed would exceed the fund’s
assets and deferred outflows of resources.

When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balance are available for use for
expenditures incurred, it is the Town’'s policy to use restricted amounts first and then
unrestricted amounts as they are needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is
the Town’s policy to use fund balance in the following order: committed, assigned, and
unassigned.
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F. Encumbrances

In governmental funds, encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and
other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve applicable
appropriations, is generally employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
General, Highway and Special Districts funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported
as assigned fund balance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

G. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates
also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

H. Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management
Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the financial
statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, which date
is June 28, 2013. ' :

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

A. Budgetary Data

The Town generally follows the procedures enumerated below in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the financial statements:

a) The Town Supervisor shall prepare a tentative budget in September and submit it to
the Town Clerk by September 30th. The tentative budget includes the estimated
revenues and expenditures for the ensuing fiscal year.

b) The Town clerk must present the tentative budget to the Town Board by October 5"
Between October 5" and October 10", the Town Board shall prepare a preliminary
budget. Immediately after the preliminary budget has been approved, the Town
Board shall file the original copy with the Town Clerk where it shall be available for
inspection by the public. In addition, the Town Board shall adopt a resolution
specifying the time and place of a public hearing, which shall be held on or before
election day during an election year and by November 10" in a non-election year.

c) At the public hearing, taxpayers may comment on the preliminary budget.

d) Within five days after the hearing, the Town Board shall adopt the preliminary
budget as originally compiled or it may, by a majority vote, diminish or reject certain
items contained therein as prescribed by law.

e) The Town Board must submit and adopted budget to the County by November 26",
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f) Formal budgetary integration is employed during the year as a management control
device for General, Highway and Special Districts funds.

g) Budgets for General, Highway and Special Districts funds are legally adopted
annually on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. The
Capital Projects Fund is budgeted on a project basis. Annual budgets are not
adopted for the Community Development, Special Purpose or Proprietary funds.

h) The Town Board has established legal control of the budget at the function level of
expenditures. Transfers between appropriation accounts, at the function level,
require approval by the Town Board. Any modification to appropriations resulting
from an increase in revenue estimates or supplemental reserve appropriations also
require a majority vote by the Board.

i) Appropriations in the General, Highway and Special Districts funds lapse at the end
of the fiscal year, except that outstanding encumbrances are reappropriated in the
succeeding year pursuant to the Uniform System of Accounts promulgated by the
Office of the State Comptroller.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the Town Board.
B. Property Tax Limitation

The Town is not limited as to the maximum amount o_f real property taxes which may be raised.
However, on June 24, 2011, the Governor signed Chapter 97 of the Laws of 2011 (“Tax Levy
Limitation Law"). This applies to all local governments.

The Tax Levy Limitation Law restricts the amount of real property taxes that may be levied by a
Town in a particular year, beginning with the 2012 year. It expires on June 16, 2016.

The following is a brief summary of certain relevant provisions of the Tax Levy Limitation Law.
The summary is not complete and the full text of the Tax Levy Limitation Law should be read in
order to understand the details and implementations thereof.

The Tax Levy Limitation Law imposes a limitation on increases in the real property tax levy,
subject to certain exceptions. The Tax Levy Limitation Law permits the Town to increase its
overall real property tax levy over the tax levy of the prior year by no more than the “Allowable
Levy Growth Factor,” which is the lesser of one and two-one hundredths or the sum of one plus
the Inflation Factor; provided, however that in no case shall the levy growth factor be less than
one. The “Inflation Factor” is the quotient of. (i) the average of the National Consumer Price
Indexes determined by the United States Department of Labor for the twelve-month period ending
six months prior to the start of the coming fiscal year minus the average of the National
Consumer Price Indexes determined by the United States Department of Labor for the twelve-
month period ending six months prior to the start of the prior fiscal year, divided by (i) the
average of the National Consumer Price Indexes determined by the United States with the result
expressed as a decimal to four places. The Town is required to calculate its tax levy limit for the
upcoming year in accordance with the provision above and provide all relevant information to the
New York State Comptroller prior to adopting its budget. The Tax Levy Limitation Law sets forth
certain exclusions to the real property tax levy limitation of the Town, including exclusions for
certain portions of the expenditures for retirement system contributions and tort judgments
payable by the Town. The Town Board may adopt a budget that exceeds the tax levy limit for the
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coming fiscal year, only if the Town Board first enacts, by a vote of at least sixty percent of the
total voting power of the Town Board, a local law to override such limit for such coming fiscal
year.

C. Application of Accounting Standards

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Town implemented GASB Statement No. 63,
“Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Position” (“GASB Statement No. 63"). This statement provides financial reporting guidance for
these elements first introduced in GASB Concept Statement No. 4, “Elements of Financial
Statements”. Previous financial reporting standards did not include guidance for reporting these
financial statement elements, which are distinct from assets and liabilities.

D. Prior Period Adjustments

In the General Fund, it was determined that the Special Purpose was combined as of January 1,
2012. As a result, the opening fund balance of $142,057 of the Special Purpose Fund was
removed from the General Fund and a separate fund was established. This resulted in an increase
to the fund balance in the Special Purpose Fund with a corresponding decrease to the fund balance
of the General Fund as of January 1, 2012.

In the Golf Fund, it was determined that the liability for other post employment benefit obligations
was overstated by $247,524 as of January 1, 2012 and understated on the government-wide
governmental activities financial statements. As a result, the net position of the Golf Fund was
increased by $247,524 as of January 1, 2012, with a corresponding decrease to government-wide
governmental activities net position.

In the government-wide statements, it was determined that inventory was overstated by $103,054,
and compensated absences were understated by $958,979, resulting in a decrease in net position
of $1,062,033 as of January 1, 2012. In addition, it was determined that accrued interest payable,
notes payable and capital leases payable were overstated on the government-wide statements by
$159,380, $22,857 and $17,693, respectively, resulting in an increase to net position of $199,930
as of January 1, 2012.

Fund Level
Government- Non-Major Enterprise
wide Special Fund
Net Assets General Purpose Golf Fund Total
Reclassification of Special Purpose
from General Fund $ - % (142,057) $ 142,057 $ - % -
Inventory (103,054) - - - -
Accrued interest payable 169,380 - - - -
Notes payable 22,857 - - - -
Capital leases payable 17,693 - - - -
Compensated absences (958,979) - - - -
Other Post Employment Benefit
Obligations (247,524) - - 247,524 247 524
$ (1,109,627) $ (142,057) $ 142,057 $ 247524 $ 247524
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E.

Fund Deficits

The following funds have unassigned deficits at December 31, 2012:

Special Districts Fund
Lighting District #4
Community Development Fund

Enterprise Fund
Golf Course

These deficits will be addressed in the ensuing years.

Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All Funds

A, Due From/To Other Funds

The unassigned deficit of $8,229,054 in the Capital Projects Fund arises because of the application
of generally accepted accounting principles to the financial reporting of such funds. The proceeds
of bond anticipation notes payable are accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund.
anticipation notes are recognized as revenue only to the extent that they are redeemed. The deficit
will be reduced and eliminated as bond anticipation notes are redeemed from interfund transfers
from other governmental funds or converted to permanent financing.

137
43,176

668,340

The balances reﬂectéd as due from/to other funds at December 31, 2012 were as follows:

Fund

General
Highway
Special Districts
Capital Projects

Non-Major Government Funds

Golf Course

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that 1)
interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, 2) transactions are

Due
To

$ 242,097

48,787
49,563
50,429
73,008

3 463,884

recorded in the accounting system and 3) payments between funds are made.
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B.

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, not being depreciated

Land

Construction-in-progress

Total Capital Assets, not
being depreciated

Capital Assets, being depreciated
Buildings and improvements
improvements other than buildings

Advances To/From Other Funds

Fund

General
Golf Fund

Capital Assets

Infrastructure

Machinery and equipment

Total Capital Assets,
being depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings

Infrastructure

Machinery and equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets,
being depreciated, net

Governmental Activities

Capital Assets, net

Due Due
From To
$ 1,677,871 $ -
- 1,677,871
$ 1,677,871 $ 1,677,871

Changes in the Town'’s capital assets are as follows:

The balances reflected as advances to/from other funds at December 31, 2012 were as follows:

The outstanding balances between funds represent loans which are not expected to be repaid
within the subsequent operating cycle.

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
- 2012 Additions _Deletions 2012
1,560,505 $ 24,000 ; 1,584,505
1,593,127 - - 1,593,127
3,153,632 $ 24,000 - 3,177,632
13,249,571  $ - - 13,249,571
4,932,528 - - 4,932,528
87,222,470 - 15,000 87,207,470
9,444,589 3,030 28,682 9,418,937
114,849,158 3,030 43,682 114,808,506
4,702,183 399,670 - 5,101,853
1,328,793 214,102 - 1,542,895
61,899,366 2,142 122 15,000 64,026,488
7,105,624 620,837 28,682 7,697,779
75,035,966 3,376,731 43,682 78,369,015
39,813,192 $ (3,373,701 - 36,439,491
42,966,824 $ (3,349,701) - 39,617,123
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Business-type Activities
Capital Assets, not being depreciated
Land

Capital Assets, being depreciated
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total Capital Assets,
being depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total Accumulated
Depreciation

Total Capital Assets,
being depreciated, net

Business-type Activities
Capital Assets, net

Depreciation expense was charged to the Town's functions and programs as follows:

Governmental Activities

General Government Support

Public Safety
Transportation

Culture and Recreation

Home and Community Services

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities

Golf Fund

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2012 Additions Deletions 2012

3 522634 % - $ - % 522,634
$ 1583576 % - $ - 1,583,576
5,456,334 - - 5,456,334
803,106 - - 803,106
7,843,016 - - 7,843,016
799,104 40,666 - 839,770
5,254,608 29,045 - 5,283,653
693,916 40,390 - 734,306
- 6,747,628 110,101 - 6,857,729
$ 1095388 $ (110,101) $ -3 985,287
$ 1,618,022 $ (110,101) $ - % 1,507,921

$ 67,535

101,302

1,688,366

33,767

1,485,761

$ 3,376,731

3 110,101
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D.

Accrued Liabilities
Accrued liabilities at December 31, 2012 were as follows:

Fund

Special
General Highway Districts Golf Course Total

Payroll and Employee Benefits  $ 122992 $ 69,761 $ 18,764 $ 6,179 $ 217,696

E.

Pension Plans

The primary government participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement
System (“ERS”) and the New York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System (‘PFRS”)
(“Systems”). These Systems are cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans. The
Systems provide retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members. Obligations of
employers and employees to contribute and benefits to employees are governed by the New York
State Retirement and Social Security Law. The Systems issue a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the Systems. That
report may be obtained by writing to the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System,
110 State Street, Albany, New York 12224,

Funding Policy - The Systems are non-contributory except for employees in tiers 3 and 4 that have
less than ten years of service, who contribute 3% of their salary and employees in tier 5 who also
contribute 3% of their salary without regard to their years of service and employees in tier 6 who
contribute between 3% and 6% depending on salary levels and also without regard to years of
service. Contributions are certified by the State Comptroller and expressed as a percentage of
members’ salary. Contribution rates are actuarially determined and based upon membership tier
and plan. Contributions consist of a life insurance portion and a regular pension contribution.
Contribution rates for the plan year ended March 31, 2013 are as follows:

Tier/Plan Rate

ERS 3 A14 414 18.6%
4 A1541J 18.6
5 A1541J 15.1
6 A1541J2 10.1
PFRS 2 384D 25.1
5 384D 20.1
6 384D 14.6

Contributions made to the Systems for the current and two preceding years were as follows:

ERS PERS
2012 $ 842,346 $ 680,812
2011 743,996 587,491
2010 521,884 425,192
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These contributions were equal to 100% of the actuarially required contributions for each respective
fiscal year.

The current ERS contribution for the Town was charged to the funds identified below. The current
PFRS contribution was charged to the General Fund.

Fund Amount
General $ 360,239
Highway 273,089
Special Districts 156,755
Golf Course 52.263
$ 842,346

The Agency does not pay wages and, accordingly, does not participate in a retirement system.
F. Short-Term Non-Capital Borrowings - Tax Anticipation Notes

The schedule below details the changes in short-term capital borrowings.

Balance - ) Balance
January 1, _ December 31,
Type 2012 Issued Redemptions 2012
Tax Anticipation Note $ 2,000,000 % - $ 2,000,000 % -
Tax Anticipation Note - 1,400,000 - 1,400,000

$ 2,000,000 $ 1,400,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 1,400,000

The $2,000,000 tax anticipation note ‘was issued on December 23, 2011 and redeemed on
February 24, 2012 with interest at 2.22%. The $1,400,000 tax anticipation note was issued on
December 18, 2012 and matures on February 28, 2013 with interest at 2.09%. Interest
expenditures of $7,523 were recorded in the fund financial statements in the General Fund.
Interest expense of $7,168 was recorded in the government-wide financial statements.

G. Short-Term Capital Borrowings

Original Balance Balance
Issue Maturity Interest January 1, December 31,
Purpose Date Date Rate 2012 Redemptions 2012
Governmental Type Activities
Capital Projects Fund
Consolidated Sewer District 01/19/2012 01/18/2013 1.02% $ 770,000 § 25,000 $ 745,000
Sewer District 03/08/2012 01/18/2013 1.25 2,925,000 25,000 2,900,000
Computer Equipment/Software  03/08/2012  01/18/2013 1.25 150,000 - 150,000
Water District 09/06/2012 01/18/2013 0.80 5,170,000 65,000 5,105,000

$ 9015000 $ 115000 $ 8,900,000
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Liabilities for bond anticipation notes are generally accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund.
Bond anticipation notes issued for judgments or settled claims are recorded in the fund paying the
claim. Principal payments on bond anticipation notes must be made annually. State law requires
that bond anticipation notes issued for capital purposes or judgments be converted to long-term
obligations generally within five years after the original issue date. However, bond anticipation
notes issued for assessable improvement projects may be renewed for periods equivalent to the
maximum life of the permanent financing, provided that stipulated annual reductions of principal
are made.

Interest expenditures of $3,153 and $122,845 were recorded in the fund financial statements in
the General Fund and Special Districts Fund, respectively.

Interest expense of $132,260 was recorded in the government-wide financial statements for
governmental activities.

Long-Term Indebtedness

The following table summarizes changes in the Town's long-term indebtedness for the year
ended December 31, 2012:

Balance Balance
January 1, Prior January 1, Maturities Balance
2012, Period 2012, New Issues/ and/or December 31, Due Within
. as reported Adjustment as restated -Additions Payments 2012 One Year
Governmental Activities
Bonds Payable )
Capital Construction 3 11,090,000 § - 8 11,090,000 $ - 3 885,000 $ 10,205,000 $ 930,000
Cther 285,000 - 285,000 - 90,000 195,000 95,000
11,375,000 - 11,375,000 - 975,000 10,400,000 1,025,000
Capital Leases Payable 452,203 (17 693) 434,510 - 161,833 272677 105,220
11,827,203 (17,693) 11,809,510 - 1,136,833 10,672,677 1,130,220
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated Absences 438,725 958,979 1,397,704 361,954 140,000 1,619,658 162,000
Notes Payable 22,857 (22,857) - - - - -
Landfill Closure 156,000 - 156,000 - 5,860 150,140 15,000
Other Post Employment
Benefit Obligations Payable 10,946,575 247,524 11,194,099 2,536,979 649,066 13,082,012
Total Other Noncurrent
Liabilities 11,564 157 1,183,646 12,747,803 2,898,933 794,926 14,851,810 177,000
Governmental Activities
Long-Term Liabilities 3 23,391,360 $ 1,165953 § 24,557,313 § 2,898,933 § 1,931,759 § 25524487 § 1,307,220
Business-Type Activities
Capital Leases Payable $ 180,547 $ 180,547 3 - 3 37,775 $ 142,772 $ 29,490
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated Absences 28,672 - 28,672 44,833 2,900 70,605 7,000
Other Post Employment
Benefit Obligations Payable 483,084 (247.524) 235,560 56,453 - 292,013
Total Other Noncurrent
Liabilities 511,756 (247 524) 264,232 101,286 2,900 362618 7,000
Business-Type Activities
Long-Term Liabilities 3 692,303 $ (247,524) $ 444779  § 101,286 $ 40675 $ 505390 $ 36,490

Each governmental fund’s liability for bonds, compensated absences and other post employment

benefit obligations payable is liquidated by the General, Highway and Special Districts funds. The
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Town's indebtedness for landfill closure costs is satisfied by the General Fund. The Town’s
indebtedness for capital leases payable is satisfied by the Highway Fund.

Bonds Payable

Bonds payable at December 31, 2012 are comprised of the following individual issues:

Amount
Qutstanding
Original at

Year of Issue Final Interest December 31,

Purpose Issue Amount Maturity Rates 2012
Landfill 1996 1,500,000 June, 2014 1.407 - 1.817 % $ 195,000
Water Improvements 2000 3,512,925 January, 2020 1.39 - 3.815 1,560,000
Sewer Reconstruction 2001 1,857,000 November, 2021 1.062 - 3.420 955,000
Highway Improvements 2003 720,000 October, 2013 4125 85,000
Sewer Reconstruction 2008 1,290,000 February, 2013 3.000 300,000
Public Improvements 2010 7,665,000 January, 2031 3.50-4.250 7,305,000
$ 10,400,000

Interest expenditures of $294,080 and $60,851 were recorded in the fund financial statements in
the General Fund and Special Districts Fund, respectively. Interest expense of $348,129 was
recorded in the government-wide financial statements for governmental activities.

Capital Leases Payable

The Town, in prior years, entered into capital leases for various highway vehicles and golf
equipment. The annual payments include interest at various amounts and mature at various times,
ranging from February 2014 through June 2018. The balance due at December 31, 2012 is
$415,449.

Interest expenditures/expense of $13,478 was recorded in the fund financial statements in the
Highway Fund and in the government-wide financial statements for governmental activities.
Interest expense of $9,601 was recorded in the fund financial statements in the Enterprise Fund -
Golf Course and the government-wide financial statements for business-type activities.

Payments to Maturity

The annual requirements to amortize all bonded and capital lease debt outstanding as of December
31, 2012, including interest payments of $3,553,887 are as follows:

Bonds Capital Leases Payable
Year Ended Governmental Activities Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2013 $ 1,025,000 $ 357,730  § 105,220 % 9605 § 29,490 % 7,593 $ 1,159,710 § 374,828
2014 655,000 334,683 109,088 5,728 31,024 6,058 795,120 346,471
2015 575,000 318,798 58,361 1,704 20,598 4,445 653,959 324,947
2016 600,000 302,125 - - 19,474 3,357 619,474 305,482
2017 610,000 283,951 - - 20,534 2,297 630,534 286,248
2018-2022 2,800,000 1,097,657 - - 21,652 1,179 2,821,652 1,098,836
2023-2027 2,110,000 643,116 - - - - 2,110,000 643,116
2028-2031 2,025,000 173,859 - ~ - - 2,025 000 173,859

$ 10400000 § 3511919 3§ 272677 % 17,038 § 142772 $_ 24930 $ 10815449 § 3,653 887
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The above general obligation bonds and capital lease are direct obligations of the Town for which
its full faith and credit are pledged and are payable from taxes levied on all taxable real property
within the Town.

Compensated Absences

Under the terms of existing collective bargaining agreements, employees are entitled to accumulate
sick and vacation leave based upon the terms of their respective collective bargaining agreements.
Payment upon separation of service varies with each agreement. The value of all compensated
absences has been reflected in the government-wide financial statements.

Landfill Closure Costs

State and Federal laws and regulations require the Town to place a final cover on its landfill site
when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the
site for thirty years after closure. The landfill site was capped in 1997 and subsequently has been
subject to monitoring in accordance with NYS regulations. The amount of $150,140 reported as a
landfill closure cost liability in the government-wide financial statements for governmental activities,
at December 31, 2012, represents the estimated total future post-closure costs. Actual costs may
be higher due to inflation, changes in technology or changes in regulation.

Other Post Employment Benefit Obligations

In addition to providing pension benefits, the Town provides certain health care benefits for retired
employees through a single employer defined benefit plan. The various collective bargaining
agreements stipulate the employees covered and the percentage of contribution. Contributions by
the Town may vary according to length of service. Substantially all of the Town’s employees may
become eligible for those benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the Town.
The cost of retiree health care benefits is recognized as an expenditure/expense as claims are paid
within the governmental funds. The Town has recognized revenues and expenditures of $28,471
for Medicare Part D payments made directly to its health insurance carrier on behalf of its retirees.

The Town’s annual other post employment benefit (“OPEB”) cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution, (“ARC”), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. GASB Statement No. 45 establishes standards for the
measurement, recognition and display of the expenses and liabilities for retirees’ medical insurance.
As a result, reporting of expenses and liabilities will no longer be done under the “pay-as-you-go”
approach. Instead of expensing the current year premiums paid, a per capita claims cost will be
determined, which will be used to determine a “normal cost’, an “actuarial accrued liability”, and
ultimately the ARC. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a
period not to exceed thirty years.

Actuarial valuations for OPEB plans involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. These amounts are subject to
continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. Calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the terms of the
substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs
between the employer and plan members to that point. In addition, the assumptions and
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projections utilized do not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding
limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and plan members in the future. The
actuarial calculations of the OPEB plan reflect a long-term perspective.

The Town is required to accrue on the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements
the amounts necessary to finance the plan as actuarially determined, which is equal to the
expected rate of return on the Town'’s general assets. Funding for the Plan has been established
on a pay-as-you-go basis. The assumed rates of increase in post retirement benefits are as
follows:

Year Ended Pre-65 Post-65

December 31, Medical Medical
2013 9.00 % 9.00 %
2014 9.00 9.00
2015 8.50 8.50
2016 8.00 8.00
2017 7.50 7.50
2018 7.00 7.00
2019 6.50 6.50
2020 6.00 6.00
2021 5.50 5.50
2022 5.00 5.00

The amortization basis is the level dollar method with an open amortization approach with 25
years remaining in the amortization period. The actuarial assumptions included in 4.0%
investment rate of return. The Town currently has no assets set aside for the purpose of paying
post employment benefits. The actuarial cost method utilized was the projected unit credit
method. A separate postemployment benefit plan report is not available.

The number of participants as of December 31, 2012 was as follows:

Governmental Enterprise
Funds Funds Total
Active Employees 119 5 124
Retired Employees 52 - 52
171 5 176
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Amortization Component:

Actuarial Accrued Liability as of January 1, 2012

Assets at Market Value

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability ("UAAL")

Funded Ratio

Covered Payroll (Active plan members)
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

Annual Required Contribution
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation

Adjustments to Annual Required Contribution

Annual OPEB Cost

Contributions Made
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation

Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year,
as reported

Prior Period Adjustment

Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year,
as restated

Net OPEB Obligation - End of Year

Governmental Enterprise
Funds Fund Total
$ 30872913 $ 649,665 $ 31,522,578
$ 30872913 § 649,665 $ 31,522,578
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
$ 7,169,088 $ 293,070 $ 7,462,158
430.64% 221.68% 422.43%
$ 2,292,832 % 51,627 $ 2,344,459
447,988 9,198 457,186
(203,841) (4,372) (208,213)
2,536,979 56,453 2,593,432
(649,066) - (649,066)
1,887,913 56,453 1,944,366
10,946,575 483,084 11,429,659
247,524 (247,524) -
11,194,099 235,560 11,429,659
$ 13,082,012 $ 292013 $ 13,374,025

The Town’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and
the net OPEB obligation for the current and the two preceding years is as follows:

Fiscal Percentage of
Year Ended Annual Annual OPEB Net OPEB
December 31, OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
2012 $ 2,593,432 25.03 % $ 13,374,025
2011 3,260,880 17.35 11,429,659
2010 N/A 8,734,500

The schedule of funding progress for the OPEB plan immediately following the notes to the financial
statements presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of the plan
assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the actuarial accrued liability for the benefits over time.



Town of Wallkill, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2012

Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)

Revenues and Expenditures
Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers are defined as the flow of assets such as cash or goods and services, without
the equivalent flow of assets in return. The interfund transfers below have been reflected as
transfers.

Transfers In

General Capital
Transfers Out Fund Fund Total
Special Districts $ - $ 115000 % 115,000
Non-Major Governmental
Funds 88,096 - 88,096

$ 88096 $ 115000 $ 203,096

Transfers are used to move amounts earmarked in the operating funds to 1) fulfill debt obligations
in the Capital Projects Fund and 2) fulfill commitments for the General Fund.

Net Position
The components of net position are detailed below:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - the component of net position that reports the difference
between capital assets less both the accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balance of
debt, excluding unexpended proceeds, that is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted for Risk Liability and Casualty - the component of net position that has been established
to set aside funds to be used for a specific purpose in accordance with Section 6n of General
Municipal Law.

Restricted for Special Districts - the component of net position that represents funds restricted for
specific purposes under New York State law or by external parties and/or statutes.

Restricted for Parklands — the component of net position that has been established pursuant to
Section 277 of Town Law. This amount represents funds received by the Town in lieu of parklands
as a condition precedent to the approval of a parcel by the Planning Board. These funds may only
be used for recreation purposes.

Unrestricted - all other amounts that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net investment in
capital assets".
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Certain elements of fund balance are described above. Those additional elements, which are not
reflected in the Statement of Net Position but are reported in the governmental funds balance sheet
are described below.

Advances have been established to indicate the long-term nature of funds advanced to the
Enterprise fund. The amount is classified as nonspendable to indicate that these funds do not
represent “available” spendable resources.

Purchases on order are assigned and represent the Town's intention to honor the contracts in
process at year-end. The subsequent year's appropriations will be amended to provide authority to
complete the transactions.

Subsequent year's expenditures represent that at December 31, 2012, the Town Board has
assigned the above amounts to be appropriated from the ensuing year’s budget.

Unassigned fund balance in the General Fund represents amounts not classified as nonspendable,
restricted, committed or assigned. Unassigned fund balances in the Capital Projects Fund
represent the deficit balances in the projects. Unassigned fund balance in the Community
Development Fund represents the excess of cumulative expenditures over current funding.

Note 4 - Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies

A.

Litigation

The Town, in common with other municipalities, receives numerous notices of claims for money
damages arising from false arrest, property damage or personal injury. There are several tort
claims pending against the Town. However, it is anticipated that insurance coverage will be
sufficient to satisfy any resolution of the tort claims pending against the Town.

There are currently pending certiorari proceedings, the results of which could require the payment
of future tax refunds by the Town, if existing assessment rolls are modified based on the outcome
of the litigation proceedings. However, the amount of the possible refunds cannot be determined at
the present time. Any payments resulting from adverse decision will be funded in the year payment
is made.

Risk Management

The Town purchases various conventional insurance to reduce its exposure to loss. The public
officials and general liability policies provide coverage of up to $1.0 million. In addition, the Town
maintains an umbrella policy with a limit of $4.0 million. Settled claims resulting from these risks
have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. The
Town also purchases conventional medical and workers’ compensation coverage.
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Note 4 - Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies (Continued)

C. Contingencies

The Town participates in various Federal grant programs. These programs may be subject to
program compliance audits pursuant to the Single Audit Act. The amount of expenditures which
may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the Town
anticipates such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

* k Kk Kk %
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Required Supplementary Information - Schedule of Funding Progress

Other Post Employment Benefits
Last Three Fiscal Years

Unfunded

Actuarial Unfunded Liability as a

Actuarial Percentage

Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll

January 1,2012 $ - % 31,522,578 $ 31,522,578 - % $ 7,462,158 422 %
January 1, 2011 - 32,123,375 32,123,375 - N/A -
January 1, 2010 - 27,214,900 27,214,900 - N/A -

N/A = Not Available
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General Fund
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2012

ASSETS

Cash
Demand deposits
Petty cash

Receivables
Accounts
State and Federal aid
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Advances to other funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Due to retirement systems

Due to other funds

Tax anticipation notes payable

Total Liabilities

Fund balance
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

56

1,450,376
1,950

1,452,326

364,718
936,043
1,419,712
73,008
1,677,871

4,471,352

5,923,678

320,543
122,992
789,804
242,097
1,400,000

2,875,436

1,677,871
10,549
24,401

1,335,421

3,048,242

5,923,678
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Town of Wallkill, New York

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Year Ended December 31, 2012

REVENUES

Real property taxes

Other tax items

Non-property taxes

Departmental income

intergovernmental charges

Use of money and property

Sale of property and
compensation for loss

Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeitures

State aid

Federal aid

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government support
Public safety
Health -
Transportation
Economic opportunity
and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community
services
Employee benefits
Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Sale of real property
Transfers in

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance -
Beginning of Year, as restated

Fund Balance - End of Year

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 5036775 $ 5036775 $ 5036775 $ -
815,000 815,000 892,999 77,999
3,617,320 3,617,320 4,028,648 411,328
524,500 524,500 640,967 116,467
408,000 408,000 283,555 (124,445)
38,220 38,220 46,868 8,648
22,200 22,200 44,049 21,849
399,500 399,500 697,948 298,448
879,000 879,000 1,082,676 203,676
1,145,044 1,145,044 811,494 (333,550)
200,000 200,000 422,808 222,808
2,500 2,500 7,720 5,220
13,088,059 13,088,059 13,996,507 908,448
2,814,547 2,811,858 2,340,144 471,714
4,085,111 4,249,193 4,161,640 87,553
8,013 15,507 15,506 1
968,904 847,614 792,430 55,184
12,300 12,300 4,711 7,589
1,091,484 1,071,635 743,641 327,894
125,560 136,435 124,095 12,340
3,631,177 3,692,229 3,450,364 141,865
350,000 350,000 350,000 -
305,462 305,462 304,756 706
13,392,558 13,392,133 12,287,287 1,104,846
(304,499) (304,074) 1,709,220 2,013,294
- - 173,379 173,379
300,000 300,000 88,096 (211,904)
300,000 300,000 261,475 {(38,525)
(4,499) (4,074) 1,970,695 1,974,769
4,499 4,074 1,077,547 1,073,473
3 - 95 - $ 3,048,242 3,048,242

57



YIIM 8oUBLIBA

(S¥¥'veL) GG5'€8C 000'80¥ 000'80%
L9V°9L1L 196°0¥9 00S 'S 00S'vZS
8¢cl'6e 8€9'6¢ 00501 00S'0)

(000°2) 000°‘g 0008 0008
€8L'glL £8l'sy 000°'/2 00022

(grz'¢) Gze'y 00S'. 006G,

(665'2Y) 106°C2C 005'692 006'69Z

(c8e'p) 119'ce 000'0V 000'0%
00€'6L1L 00E'v61 000'G. 000'G.

(gzLel) G/8' /Y 000'09 000°09
025'02 02s'ov 000'02 000°'02

(60L'Y) 168 000G 000's

(€812 118 000'9 000'9
gze'L LY 8¥9'820'v 0ze'L19'c 02€'219'S
666°L.L 666268 000'G18 000'G18
€.0'G €,0'08Z 000'6.2 000'6/2
Gov'CL Sob'es 000°'0% 000°'0%
L9¥'09 LO¥' 095 000005 000'00S
- G//'9€0'S GL1'9€0'S GL.'9€0'G

(ennebaN) lenoy 1ebpng 1obpng
BAllISOd |euiq feulblo
1ebpng [eui4

sousby wouy syoegsbieyn
STOUVHO TVLINIWNYIAODYILNI

snosue||aosiIy

seb.ieyd abeqieb pue asnjey
ses8) pleog buiuue|d

s89j} Buluoz

S99} UoljEaID8) PUE Syled
suoyesado shg

s1ox213 Bunyied

$99) uoloadsul Alojeg

S99} soisijess [elIn

$89) 921|104

S99 Yo|D UMO |

JIWODNI TVININILYVYJLAA

Auno) wouy uonnqusip xe) Auedoid-uoN
SAXVL ALY3IdOUd-NON

$99; asIyouel4

saxe} Auedold jeas uo sapjeuad pue jsaloju]
S9XE} JO NaJ} Ul Sjuswhed

SIN3LI XV1 d3HLO

SIAXVL ALY3dO¥d VI

2102 'Lg Jequisda( pspu] Jes A

1e6png o} paledwo) seoinog BuidUEUlH JOYIO PUB SBNUBASY JO 8jNPaYOS

pund jeJsusc)

Y0 M3N ‘lIIIIEM jO umo |

58



(panunuo)

(0G5'cee) y6v 118 PPO'SyLL vy0'SL L
(000'02) - 000°02 00002
(286'¢) %2 ATA) 000°'sZL 000'GZ})
G81'0L G8y'0L - -
(00L'tS2) - 00.'vSC 00.'¥S2
9v0'9 06£°19 pye'es pre'ss
(GoL'LEL) G62'89Y 000'009 000'009
BL1) 18868 000'06 000'06
9/9'€0Z 9/9'280°1L 000'6.8 000'6.8
8y '862 8v6°' /69 00S'66€ 00S'66€
(£98) eeL’y 000'2 0002
S AANS 61 '069 000°'88¢ 000'88€
(825'2) z26'e 00S'9 005'9
(952) 4 000°€ 000'¢
6v8'1LZ 670 'V 0022 00222
68¢'6 68¢€'6Z 000°02 000°02
(B2H) LLL'L 0022 002'C
688'CL 688'C1 - -

8v9'g 9989t 02z'8g - 022's¢
(9) vz 0zce 022
8GY's 1 8Gy'8¢ 000'€2 0002
(¥08'9) 961'8 000'GL 000'SlL

BUYI0
pie uoljepodsuel |
[suun} eus|jes)
pie uoljepodsuel |

juest jles jley
ple spl pue Mied
xe} abebuopy
ejdes Jad

aiv 31vis

lleq pajiapio} pue sauld
S3¥NLIFIYOL4 ANV SINI

sHw.ad pue sasusdl| 18Yi0
sywad Buipjing

sasua9l| Bog

sasua9l| obuig

S1INY3d ANV S3SN30IT

SO1IBA028) 3oURINSU|
so|es JOUlN
wawdinbs Jo ajesg

SSO7 404 NOILLVSN3IdINOD
ANV ALY3d0Odd 40 3Tvs

SUOISSIWWOY
Auadoud jeas jo [eyusy

sjuswisaAul uo sbuiuies
Ald3d0Odd ANV ASNOW 40O 3Sn

59



(This page intentionally left blank)



€26'698 ¢ 286'/6Z'F%L ¢ 650'88€'tl $ 650'88E'CL
(Ges'se) GLY'192 000'00¢ 000°00€
(Y06°LL2) 96088 000°00¢ 000°00¢
6.E'€LL 6.E'€LL - -
871’806 L05'966'EL 650'880°C) 650'880°CL
02z's 0z’ 00S'C 0052
808'2¢Z ¢ 808'Cey ¢ 000002 ¢ 000°00T
(enneben) [enjoy Jebpng Jobpng
SAIlISO] leui feuibuo
1ebpng [eui

Uum soueLiep

S304NOS ONIONVNIL
d3HL1O ANV SINNIAZY TVLOL

s80.1nog Buoueuld JayiQ [eloL

pun4 asodind |eioadg - ui siajsuel |
Auadoud jeal jo ajeg
S30HUNOS ONIONVNI4 ¥3HLO

S3INN3INTY TVLOL

payissejoun
SNO3INVTIIOSIN

ple sng
av vy3a3d

ZLl0Z L€ 18quisdeq papul Jes A

(panunuon) 186png 03 pasedwor saaoinog Buoueuld Jayl0 pue SanuaAsy O 8|NPayos

pun4 |eiauss)

NIOA MON ‘|IHIEM JO UMO]

Q
©



vLL LY riL'ove'g 868°118°C LyS'vL8'e
€gl'esl - egl'est €5L'e8l
lBE'Y €09'91 000°Le 000°L2
veEL'L 908} 000°¢cL 000l
- 000'vC 000'¥2 000'vC
G8 GlL6 000°L 000°0¢
- 0102 0L0C 059°)
6.2'LY L2€'06¢C 009°L€€ 000°L8¢
L€ oz6'cel 156°2Cl 00S'vL)
esy'se (5 A4 9/8°101 8¢/.°L01
1 GlLl 0S5t oGt
ASTAL® 8¥/.'62 000°se 000°GE
€699 1£€°08¢ 0£8'9v¢ 0z8°zee
0€6'8 982yl ¥6.°1G1 v6.°LS1
6G6'C v/18°CL £€8'9/ €€8'9.
ory'e ¥SG'6 000'9L 000°91
¥80°'GE e6l'see 112092 005'8l€
Z6.'61 £€9'08 Gey'90L Gey ool
oov'se 099'vze 921092 ozl09z
8l 1669 GEL'9 GEL'D
€6 10582 eev'6e cer'6e
89¥'|L zes'sy 000°0S 000°0S
2.ly'S 860°80C 0/6'¢€lz osv'ele
eLL'oz G2e'06¢e 8¢0' LY 8C0'LLY
4 6¥0°GE LGO'GE z0z've $
(eneboN) [enjoy 1obpng 196png
SAlIsOd leuid feubuo
Jobpng jeuiy

UlIMm SoUBLIEA

Aouabunuon
xe} Ajjiqows
uonjeodsuel; Jenwwod uelijodosiap
Apedoid uo sjusWISSHSSE pUEB SOXE |
(Rem j0 1ybu) aseyoind pue
swieo pue syuswbpnp
senp uoneosse jedioiuniy
soueINsu psiedojjieun
Buissasoud eyeq
Bunuud jesus)
Wo0lal103s |eJjua)
SUOIIEDIUNWILIOD [BJIUS)D
sbulp|ing
uonensIuIWpPE SHIOM Jljgnd
suonoe|3
lasuibug
Asuiony
MBSO UMO |
Jossassy
Jebpng
uo1399|j02 Xe |
Jo)pny
Josinjedng
0IISNP UMO |
pJjeog Umo |
1¥0ddNS INJINNYIAOD TVHINID

Z10T ‘L€ 18quiedaQ papul Jea
196png 03 patedwo) sainypuadxy jo siNpayos
pun4 |ejsus9

HOA MaN ‘lIDfIIEM J0 umo |

61



(penunuo))

v68'.2¢ Lo'ey. GES'LLO'L ¥8Y'L60°L
L ces’e €ES'E z8r'e

- - - 00002
0€6'6.¢ CLy'LSS 200°.€8 200°.€8
€9g'sy LE9'T8L 000°1€2 000°L€C
6852 L'y 00€eCL 00eCL
L¥6'9 €601 000'8 0008
[A%°) 8G¢E 000°L 000°}

- 0og’e 00€’e 00€’e
¥81°GS 0EY'Z6L v19'/v8 06'896
09Z'ey ¥GE'86¢ 125 0% L9 LYe
v¥5'9 9st'e9 000°0L 000052

b 665°L9 009°L9 vye'eS

- oce'6SL 0ee'6S1L 0oo‘oct
6.LE'S 169'602 0.0'Gle 96102

L 906Gt L0G'SL €Lo’s
€65°/8 or9'L9L'Y e6l'ere'y LLL'G80'Y
L/8°EL BEY P6E ole‘soy 9/£'L0Y
061°8¢ gLL'0L 80€ '8P 80€ '8y
€16°C 120'8¢ ¥66'0F ¥66°0v
¥88°CL oLLCy 000°SS 000°GS
GE9'6L 9¥6'9.9°¢ 185°069'¢ EEY'BES'E

UeLIO}SIH

SHI0Mall

syied

uoneJSIUILIPE UoNEaI09Y
NOILYIYO3™ ANV FdNLTIND

Buibe ay) 10} swelboid

S0INISS S,UBIBJOA

Ayoyang

INIINJOT3AIA ANV ALINNLHOddO JINONOD3

suoljelado sng

peo. [puuny

10| ©pu pue Mled
Bunyby yeang
abeseb Aemybiy
NOILVIHOJdSNVYL

Jesisibay
HLIV3H

uoljoadsul Ajejes
joau09 BoQg
Juswasiojus bupued
|0J3U0D D1yel )

8dljod

Al134Vvs JI18nd

62



or8'v0lL’L $ /8z'/82'cL $ ecizee’cl $  8s6s'zeLel $
902 96/ %59 29¥'SS9 29¥'659
902 9G.'v0¢ 291'S0¢ 29%'50¢
) esl'e vGl'e 6E6'C
- €26’ €25, £25'L
G0. 080'¥62 G8.'¥6Z 000'662
- 000'06¢€ 000°0S€ 000°'0S¢€
Go8'L¥l ¥9E'0St'S 622'765'C 171°1€9'¢
GLo'ze ZeL'P69'L Lvl'92)') lv1'110'C
888'c ZLL'e 000°0} 0000t
s0z'ey G66'0Y 00Z'c8 00Z'c8
lze'ee 961'8¥C Llv'T8e YAR A
gez'ee 8/G'6LY cL8'syy cL8'syy
L 1S0‘L0'L 25S0'1L¥0') 000089
ove'zl G60'VZL Gev'oct 095'6Z!
- 098'G 098°S 050°C
192's LLZ'y 2Lv'6 0052
oge 0L} el 0ge'}
6.8 L2L'6 000°01 000°0}
v12'C 98¢'68 09126 09126
060'E $ Olv'pl 00S'ZL 00S'LL $
(annebaN) [enpy Jobpng Jebpng
SAlsod feud feuibuo
}obpng eut

YUM SoUBLIBA

SAAINLIANIdIX3 TV1OL

s8jou uoljedionue puog
sojou uonedionue xe |
spuoq |[euss

1salsy|

spuoq |euss
[edipulig
ADIAY3S 1930

aouesnsul YjeaH

Ayngesia

sjjeuaq JuswAhojdwsun
sjiysuaq uolesuadwos SIoNIOM
Aunoss jeioog

juswalal a1.1g

S1i43N=9 33A0TdIN3

liypuen

abequeb pue asnjey
uoissiwwed sybu uewny
ueid Jorsepn

Buluue|g

Buiuoz

S3DIAYES ALINNIWNOD ANV 3JINOH

2102 ‘L€ Joquiede pspud Jes A
196png o0} patedwo) sainjipuadxy Jo S|NPaySS
pun4 |eJjauag

HOA M3N ‘lIDfIIeM JO umo]

63



Town of Wallkill, New York

Highway Fund
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

Receivables
Accounts
Due from other funds

Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities
Due to retirement systems

Total Liabilities

Fund balance
Assigned

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

64

4

1,985,308

66,284
291,660

357,944

2,343,252

169,089
69,761
206,185

445,035

1,898,217

R

2,343,252
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Town of Wallkill, New York

Highway Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2012

REVENUES

Real property taxes

Other tax items

Intergovernmental charges

Use of money and property

Sale of property and
compensation for loss

Interfund revenues

State aid

Federal aid

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current '
General government support
Transportation
Employee benefits
Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Variance with

Final Budget

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 3,957,252 $ 3,957,252 $ 3,957,252 % -
450,000 450,000 445,206 (4,794)
229,000 229,000 311,810 82,810
10,000 10,000 10,208 208
22,250 22,250 97,831 75,581
175,000 175,000 245,808 70,808
270,000 270,000 344,624 74,624
- - 170,686 170,686
1,500 1,500 3,840 2,340
5,115,002 5,115,002 5,687,265 472,263
27,939 27,939 - 27,939
3,638,670 3,659,469 3,472,596 186,873
1,311,521 1,322,970 1,277,699 45,271
200,000 182,862 161,833 21,029
14,762 14,762 13,478 1,284
5,192,892 5,208,002 4,925,606 282,396
(77,890) (93,000) 661,659 754,659
77,890 93,000 1,236,558 1,143,558
$ - 3 - % 1,898,217 $ 1,898,217
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Town of Wallkill, New York

Special Districts Fund
Combining Balance Sheet - Sub Funds
December 31, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

Receivables
Accounts
Water and sewer rents
Due from other funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Due to retirement systems

Due to other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Assigned

Total Liabilities and
Fund Balances

Combined Combined Combined Road
Water Sewer Lighting Improvement

Districts Districts Districts Area
$ 5140426 $ 3372846 $ 313013 $ 664,179
2,911 14,639 - -
756,507 840,495 - -
48,644 - 143 50,429
808,062 855,134 143 50,429

$ 5948488 $ 4227980 $ 313,156 $ 714,608
$ 60,941 3 34028 % - 9 -
7,757 11,007 - -
57,220 68,664 - .
15,337 33,307 143 -
141,255 147,006 143 -
5,807,233 4,080,974 313,013 714,608
$ 5948488 $ 4227980 $ 313,156 $ 714,608
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Total

$ 9,490,464

17,550
1,697,002
99,216

1,713,768

$ 11,204,232

$ 94,969
18,764
125,884
48,787

288,404

10,915,828

$ 11,204,232
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Town of Wallkill, New York

Special Districts Fund

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balances - Sub Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2012

REVENUES

Real property taxes

Other tax items
Departmental income

Use of money and property
State aid

Federal aid

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Transportation
Home and community services
Employee benefits
Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Rev-
enues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out

Net Change in Fund
Balances

Fund Balances (Deficits) -
Beginning of Year

Fund Balances (Deficits) -
End of Year

Water Districts Sewer Districts

Arfman Arfman

Consolidated Tract Consolidated Tract
$ 1,115806 $ - $ 1,375,248 -
1,722,417 261,688 2,015,050 193,117
16,399 57 10,576 11
22,103 - - -
64,767 - - -
2,692 - 12,322 7
2,944,184 261,745 3,413,196 193,135
1,679,425 191,586 1,476,613 - 213,690
268,189 - 301,929 -
180,000 - 365,000 -
97,435 - 79,555 -
2,225,049 191,586 2,223,097 213,690
719,135 70,159 1,190,099 (20,555)
(65,000) - (50,000) -
654,135 70,159 1,140,099 (20,555)
5,081,988 951 2,922,798 38,632
$ 5736,123 $ 71,110 $ 4,062,897 18,077

638




Lighting Districts Road
Improvement
District #1 District #2 District #3 District #4 Area Total
$ 7459 ¢ 30,000 % 2,610 $ 1265 $ 151,707 $ 2,684,095
30,541 - - - - 30,541
- - - - - 4,192,272
549 514 4 3 2,109 30,222
- - - - 22,103
- - - - - 64,767
- - - - - 15,021
38,549 30,514 2,614 1,268 153,816 7,039,021
14,973 20,454 1,546 1,145 8,420 46,538
- - - - - 3,561,314
- - - - - 570,118
- - - - 80,000 625,000
- - - - 6,706 183,696
14,973 20,454 1,546 1,145 95,126 4,986,666
23,576 10,060 1,068 123 58,690 2,052,355
- - - - - (115,000)
23,576 10,060 1,068 123 58,690 1,937,355
140,145 138,631 (330) (260) 655,918 8,978,473
$ 163,721 $ 148691 $ 738 % (137) $ 714608 $ 10,915,828
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Town of Walilkiil, New York

Capital Projects Fund
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

LIABILITIES AND FUND DEFICIT
Liabilities
Due to other funds
Bond anticipation notes payable
Total Liabilities

Fund deficit
Unassigned

Total Liabilities and Fund Deficit
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$ 720,509
$ 49,563
8,900,000
8,949,563
(8,229,054)
$ 720,509




Town of Wallkill, New York

Capital Projects Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance

Year Ended December 31, 2012

REVENUES

Use of money and property $ 964

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay 15,631
Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures (14,667)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers in 115,000
Net Change in Fund Balance 100,333
Fund Deficit - Beginning of Year (8,329,387)
Fund Deficit - End of Year $ (8,229,054)
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Town of Wallkill, New York

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Liabilities

Due to other funds
Fund balances

Restricted
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances (Deficits)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances (Deficits)

72

Total
Non-Major
Community Special Governmental
Development Purpose Funds
$ 7,253  $ 304,687 % 311,940
$ 50,429 § - 3 50,429
- 304,687 304,687
(43,176) - (43,176)
(43,176) 304,687 261,511
$ 7,253 $ 304,687 $ 311,940




Town of Wallkill, New York

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Total
Non-Major
Community Special Governmental
Development Purpose Funds
REVENUES
Departmental income $ $ 250,000 ¢ 250,000
Use of money and property - 726 726
Federal aid 8,464 - 8,464
Miscellaneous 10 - 10
Total Revenues 8,474 250,726 259,200
EXPENDITURES
Current
Home and community services 9,950 - 9,950
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures ) (1,476) 250,726 249,250
OTHER FINANCINGS USES _ _
Transfers out - (88,096) (88,096)
Net Change in Fund Balances (1,476) 162,630 161,154
Fund Balances (Deficits) -
Beginning of Year, as restated (41,700) 142,057 100,357
Fund Balances (Deficits) - End of Year $ (43,176) $ 304687 S 261,511
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Town of Wallkill, New York

Community Development Fund
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

LIABILITIES AND FUND DEFICIT
Liabilities
Due to other funds

Fund deficit
Unassigned

Total Liabilities and Fund Deficit
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$ 7,253
$ 50,429

(43,176)
$ 7,253




Town of Wallkill, New York

Community Development Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Actual
REVENUES
Federal aid $ 8,464
Miscellaneous 10
8,474
EXPENDITURES
Current
Home and community services 9,950
Deficiency of Revenues
Over Expenditures (1,476)
Fund Deficit - Beginning of Year _ (41,700)
Fund Deficit - End of Year 3 (43,176)
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Town of Wallkill, New York

~ Special Purpose Fund
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

FUND BALANCE
Restricted

76

3

304,687

$

304,687




Town of Wallkill, New York

Special Purpose Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance
Year Ended December 31, 2012

REVENUES

Departmental income

Use of money and property
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year, as restated

Fund Balance - End of Year
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250,000
726

250,726

250,726

(88,096)

162,630

142,057

304,687




Town of Wallkill, New York

Enterprise Fund - Golf Fund
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2012

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable

Total Current Assets

Capital assets
Not being depreciated
Being depreciated, net

Total Capital Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to retirement systems
Due to other funds
Advances from other funds

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

78

129,783
14,108

143,891

522,634
985,287

1,507,921

1,651,812

16,943
6,179
40,761
73,008
1,677,871

1,814,762

36,490
468,900

505,390

2,320,152

1,365,149
(2,033,489)

$

(668,340)




Town of Wallkill, New York

Enterprise Fund - Golf Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position

Year Ended December 31, 2012

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services
Contractual and other
Employee benefits
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Loss from Operations
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Interest expense

Total Non-Operating Expenses

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning of Year, as restated

Net Position - End of Year

79

¥

1,217,344

446,613
416,127
314,746
110,101

1,287,587

(70,243)

340
(9,601)

(9,261)

(79,504)

(588,836)

$

(668,340)




Town of Wallkill, New York

Enterprise Fund - Golf Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers $ 1,223,210
Cash payments for goods and services (522,883)
Cash payments to employees (402,805)
Cash payments for employee benefits (251,936)

Net Cash from Operating Activities 45 586

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances from other funds (87,108)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal paid on installment purchase debt (37,776)

Interest paid on indebtedness (9,601)
Net Cash from Capital and Related Financing Activities (47,377)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest income 340
Net Change in Cash _ (88,559)

Cash - Beginning of Year ' 218,342
Cash - End of Year $ 129,783

RECONCILIATION OF LOSS FROM OPERATIONS TO NET CASH

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from operations $ (70,243)
Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations to

net cash from operating activities

Depreciation 110,101

Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable 5,866
Accounts payable 6,136
Accrued liabilities 1,875
Due to retirement system 6,357
Due to other funds (112,892)
Compensated absences 41,933
Other post employment benefit obligations payable 56,453
Net Cash from Operating Activities $ 45,586
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